
 

REGULAR MEETING 

May 01, 2023 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the 
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19) 
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are optional for all meeting participants. 

 

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Lorenzo Heard. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Invocation. 

4. Pledge of Allegiance. 

5. Minutes. 

a. Consider for action the Minutes of the April 3rd Regular Meeting and April 10th Work 
Session.  ACTION: 

6. Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty 
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the 
point, and considerate of time for others). 

a. Sheriff's Office Captain Ted Thomas present to provide an update on the 2022 Albany 
Dougherty Youth Unit (ADYU) Summer Program and request funding for the 2023 
year. 

7. Purchases. 

a. Consider for action the recommendation to purchase furniture for the Tax/Tag Office 
from the State Contract Vendor,  Advent Business Interiors (Leesburg, Ga) in the 
amount of $36,924.76.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VI.  ACTION: 

1



b. Consider for action the Resolution providing for the acceptance of the bid for food 
services for the Dougherty County Jail from the lowest responsive and responsible 
proposer meeting specifications, Trinity Services Group (Oldsmar, Fl) in the amount 
of $811,340, subject to the execution of the contract by the County 
Administrator.  Funding will be provided in the General Fund.  ACTION: 

8. Additional Business. 

a. Consider for action the unanimously approved recommendation from the Recreation 
Committee to develop the Putney Park multi-generational facility  in the budgeted 
amount of $983,000 and an operational budget of approximately $30,000 
annually.   Funding is available in SPLOST VII.  The operational budget will be funded 
by the Special Services District Budget. Chairman of the Recreation Committee 
Edwards will address. ACTION:  

b. Consider for action the Resolution providing for the acceptance to fund the total fees 
with related expenses for architectural and engineering services for Putney Park multi-
generational facility in the amount of $93,000 from Maschke Associates, subject to the 
execution of the contract by the County Administrator.  Funding is available in 
SPLOST VII.  County Administrator Michael McCoy and Architect David Maschke are 
present to address. ACTION: 

c. Consider for action the Resolution providing for the acceptance and execution of the 
Memorandum of Understanding between the Marine Corps Logistics Base (MCLB) 
and the Albany Dougherty County Police Departments, Albany Fire Department and 
the Dougherty County Sheriff's Office for the purpose of providing Heightened 
Security Threat- Code Red/Blue Dart notifications.  County Administrator Michael 
McCoy and Dougherty County Police Chief Kenneth Johnson are present to address. 
ACTION: 

9. Updates from the County Administrator. 

10. Updates from the County Attorney. 

11. Updates from the County Commission. 

12. Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of 
the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121 
promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

2



 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

April 3, 2023 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on April 3, 2023.  Chairman Lorenzo Heard presided and called the meeting to order at 

10:00 a.m.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, 

Clinton Johnson and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator Michael McCoy, 

County Clerk Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  County Attorney Alex Shalishali participated via 

teleconference.  The public and representatives of the media participated in person and via live 

streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access 

channel.  Commissioner Anthony Jones was absent. 

 

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by the Chairman, he called for approval of the 

minutes for the March 6th Regular Meeting and March 13th Work Session. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

minutes were unanimously approved.   
 

The Chairman recognized Ga Department of Community Affairs, Project Manager  

Joshua Norris and Community Development Block Grant- Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) 

Program Manager Kathy Tremblay to provide an update on the CDBG-DR Homeowner 

Rehabilitation Program.  It was shared that the State receive $13 million in grant funds for 

homes that were damaged by Hurricane Michael.  The application process can be completed 

online or with a case manager.  It is projected that construction will begin in the summer of 

2023.  The most impacted and distressed counties are Dougherty, Seminole and Decatur.  The 

plans include expanding 80% of funds in these areas with 70% of funds being utilized for 

households considered low to moderate income based on area median income.  Ms. Trembley 

clarified for Commissioner Edwards that there must be two separate procurement processes for 

the 2017 and 2018 storms.  Ideally, contractors will show interest and qualify for both programs.  

She also replied to Commissioner Gray by saying that they are always receptive to obtaining 

data.  She mentioned that if there was a need for rental assistance in the 2018 program, the 

request can be reviewed.  It was shared that rental assistance was provided within the 2017 

grants and the Board requested that the citizens in Dougherty County be better informed. 

 

The Chairman read the proclamation by the Dougherty County Board of Commissioners 

commemorating April as National Counties Month.  County Administrator Michael McCoy and 

Public Information Officer Wendy Howell were present to share the county's upcoming 

initiatives.  Mr. McCoy shared that this is an initiative of NACo and ACCG.  Ms. Howell 

mentioned that the engagement was planned to be conducted via social media.  The national 

3

Item 5a.



 

 

theme is “Counties Rise!” and Mr. McCoy said that a banner will be placed at the government 

center.  Based upon a question from Commissioner Jones, Ms. Howell said that she has 

marketing funds that could help with recruiting efforts and highlighting employees and 

Commissioners.  The proclamation reads as follows: 

 

A PROCLAMATION 

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF DOUGHERTY COUNTY, 

GEORGIA DECLARING APRIL 2023 NATIONAL COUNTY GOVERNMENT 

MONTH 
 

"COUNTIES RISE!" 

 

 WHEREAS, the nation’s 3,069 counties serving more than 330 million Americans 

provide essential services to create healthy, safe and vibrant communities; and  

 

 WHEREAS, counties fulfill a vast range of responsibilities and deliver services that 

touch nearly every aspect of our residents’ lives; and   

 

 WHEREAS, Dougherty County, Georgia and all counties take pride in our 

responsibility to protect and enhance the health, well-being and safety of our residents in 

efficient and cost-effective ways; and  

 

 WHEREAS, under the leadership of the National Association of Counties President,  

Denise Winfrey, NACo is highlighting how “Counties RISE!,” demonstrating exemplary 

Resiliency, Inclusion, Solvency, and Empowerment; and   

 

 WHEREAS, each year since 1991 the National Association of Counties has 

encouraged counties across the country to elevate awareness of county responsibilities, 

programs and services; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Dougherty County, Georgia remains committed to its mission of 

improving the quality of life for all citizens by being accessible and good stewards of our 

resources, while delivering cost-effective, responsive services with integrity, fairness and 

friendliness. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of 

Dougherty County, Georgia does hereby proclaim April 2023 as National County Government 

Month and encourage all county officials, employees, schools and residents to participate in 

county government celebration activities. 

  

  

4

Item 5a.



 

 

 This the 3rd day of April, 2023. 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF  

      DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

       

     BY:____________________________________ 

      LORENZO L. HEARD, Chairman 

Dougherty County Commission 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase playground equipment for Robert Cross Park 

from the lowest quoted vendor Playworld Preferred (Lewisburg, PA) in the amount of $70,921.  

Funding is budgeted in ARPA.    

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  Under 

discussion, Mr. Mathis answered the questions by Commissioner Edwards in reference to the 

disposal of old equipment.  There being no further discussion, the motion for approval passed 

unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase a 25-gallon electric tilting kettle for the 

kitchen at the Jail from the lowest quoted vendor, Hobart Sales & Service (Albany, GA) in the 

amount of $21,222.83.  Funding is budgeted in the General Fund.   

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase two 2023 F-550 Cab & Chassis with 

Ambulance Prep Package and Patient Module from state contract vendor Wade Ford for the 

EMS Department in the amount of $208,724 each for a total expenditure of $417,448.  Funding 

is budgeted in SPLOST VII. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to rescind the purchase of one 2020 Freightliner 114 SD 

in the amount of $109,027 to Four Star Freightliner (Montgomery, Al).  The initial award of 

$173,277 for the freightliner and 2021 Polar SRX 800-1 Tank Trailer for Solid Waste was 

approved in the February 15, 2021 Regular Meeting.   

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously. 

 

5

Item 5a.



 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase one 2024 Peterbilt 567 Daycab from the 

Sourcewell Contract vendor Peterbilt of Atlanta (Jackson, GA) for the Solid Waste Department 

in the amount of $168,733.  Funding is budgeted in Solid Waste Capital Outlay.   

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase and install elevator controllers for the Jail 

from a service provider, Albany Elevator Service (Albany, GA) in the amount of $42,400.  

Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VI.  County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  Chief 

Jailer John Ostrander was present.  Mr. McCoy recommended approval. 

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Commissioner Newsome seconded the motion.  

Under discussion, Mr. McCoy shared upon a question by Commissioner Gaines that this is an 

emergency repair and it was not listed in the Work Session.  He added that the elevator was out 

of code compliance and not operational.  Chief Ostrander addressed technical questions.  There 

being no further discussion, the motion for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution declaring the listed cellular phones as 

surplus and authorizing the sale through Firefly IT Asset Recovery, Inc. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 23-019 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE ATTACHED LIST OF 

CELLULAR PHONES AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE 

SALE THEREOF THROUGH FIREFLY IT ASSET RECOVERY, 

INC.; REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the Juvenile Court to apply 

for a Criminal Justice Incentive Grant Program in the amount of $450,000 for Functional Family 

Therapy use.  This is an annual request for the 100% grant with no local match.   Juvenile Court 

Clerk Tequilla Woods was present.  Mr. McCoy shared that this is administrative housekeeping. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously. 

 

Commissioner Newsome recognized the Easter holiday and Mr. McCoy answered a question 

by Commissioner Edwards relative to an update on the summer internship program.  It was 

noted that an update will be in the next Work Session.  Commissioner Johnson recognized 

6

Item 5a.



 

 

former state representative Winfred Dukes.  Commissioner Gaines asked about the budget 

hearings and the status of the District Attorney appearance and Mr. McCoy addressed.  

Chairman Heard acknowledged the presence of Winfred Dukes and his [personal] family. 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

10:52 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

7

Item 5a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

April 10, 2023 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on April 10, 2023.  Chairman Lorenzo Heard presided and called the meeting to order 

at 10:00 am.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, 

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator 

Michael McCoy, County Attorney Alex Shalishali, County Clerk Jawahn Ware and other 

staff.  The public and representatives of the media participated in person via live streaming of 

the meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.   

 

After the roll call and the invocation, Chairman Heard asked the Commission to review the 

minutes of the March 20th Regular Meeting and March 27th Work Session. 

 

The Chairman recognized District Attorney Greg Edwards to address concerns pertaining to 

opioid usage and the penalties assessed.  In the past, the District Attorney's office prosecuted 

users that were positive for an EMIT test.  He shared that this practice, alongside the Albany 

Dougherty Drug Unit no longer applies to prosecuting users that have drugs “inside of them”.  

The Department of Community Supervision will be involved for individuals that violate 

parole.  However, there are limitations and individuals have a certain number of times for 

violations.  He mentioned provisions under the Georgia Amnesty Law and clarified that a 

person is prosecuted if they have more than four grams of substance in possession.  A lengthy 

discussion ensued where clarifications were provided, and questions were answered by the 

Board.  The questions pertained to possessions and prosecutions including a statement that the 

District Attorney's Office does not have a moratorium on drugs and prosecutes according to 

law.  The Board was encouraged to contact their legislature for changes in the law to be made. 

 

The Chairman recognized James Morgan, County Extension Coordinator, to update the 

Commission with the quarterly report and introduce Anna Grace Peebles, the new Family and 

Consumer Sciences Agent. 

 

The Chairman recognized Jana Dyke, President & CEO, Albany-Dougherty Economic 

Development Commission, to provide the quarterly update.  Ms. Dyke introduced the Director 

of Business Development Jessica Zurheide.  She shared that Matt Red is the new Payroll 

Development Authority (PDA) Chairman.  Throughout the presentation, questions and 

concerns of the Board were addressed.  She shared that she would serve as a key facilitator to 

help spearhead having the area's “story” be told.  She also mentioned upcoming events and 

highlighted the “Project Putney” where Samsung proposed leasing property for 45 years.  The 

increase to the County digest is projected to be $5,785,566 for a total tax digest projection of 

is $11,317,598.  Commissioner Jones stated he supports citizens of District 6 and the Planning 

Commission; and he is not in favor of the project.    

 

8

Item 5a.



The Chairman called for the zoning discussion of John Hancock Life Insurance Company, 

owner and Soon Kwon, Yejin Park, applicant; (23-019) request for special approval to allow 

the construction of a Solar Facility on a 744.89-acre parcel zoned AG (Agricultural District). 

The property is located at 1711 (1712) Hancock Rd.  The Planning Commission 

recommended denial.  Angel Gray, Planning Manager, addressed.  The Public Hearing and 

Action are scheduled for April 17, 2023.  A full presentation will be made to the Board next 

week and Samsung representatives will be present. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to purchase a 2023 Chevrolet 1500 Pickup Truck for 

Public Works from the lowest quoted vendor, Prince Automotive Group (Albany, GA) in the 

amount of $44,729.  The truck is in stock and available for immediate delivery.  The cost of 

the next vendor with available inventory is $49,479.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  

County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  Public Works Director Chuck Mathis was 

present.  Mr. McCoy recommended approval due to the availability of the vehicles. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to accept the resolution declaring a 2016 Ford Taurus 

Police Interceptor (from the Dougherty County Police Department) as surplus and authorize 

the sale through Underwriters Safety & Claims.  County Administrator Michael McCoy 

addressed.  Mr. McCoy said that this is administrative housekeeping to dispose of the 

vehicles as part of our risk management process. 

 

The Chairman called for a continued discussion and review of the proposed restroom access 

policy.  County Attorney Alex Shalishali addressed.  The County Attorney reviewed the 

proposals.  Commissioner Edwards shared that he proposed that the City of Albany review 

and have a consensus to proceed.  If the City does not implement, he does not think the 

County should proceed and “leave it alone.”  He believed it will become an issue like the 

Sunday alcohol sales; citizens do not understand when the City and County have different 

policies and ordinances.  The consensus was to discuss option number two and the County 

Attorney was directed by the Chairman to meet with the City Attorney. 

 

The Chairman called for a continued discussion and review of the funding and development 

of the proposed morgue in the estimated amount of $1,300,720.  County Administrator 

Michael McCoy and Architect David Maschke addressed.  Mr. McCoy shared that the  

$1 million will be provided from the collections in SPLOST VII.  The Chairman was not in 

favor of the suggestion to add additional contingency costs.  Commissioner Edwards 

reminded the Board that the completion of the morgue was a goal and priority of the retreat.  

Commissioner Gray shared that the recent visit [to the current morgue] revealed that there 

are many available buildings, possibly owned by Phoebe, that can be utilized.  Commissioner 

Newsome was opposed to proceeding with the current proposal and shared that additional 

due diligence was needed by the Board.  He added that we are mandated to provide a 

functioning morgue and this proposal exceeds that request.  

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to consider the funding and development of a proposed 

multi-generational community facility at Putney Park in the estimated amount of $982,850.  

County Administrator Michael McCoy and Architect David Maschke addressed.   

Mr. McCoy reminded individuals that this was a priority of the Commission meeting.  He 

9

Item 5a.



gave a historical reminder of funding attempts that were not received.  It was foreseen that 

the building would be utilized for programming by the City of Albany [Recreation 

Department].  Commissioner Gray suggested that this facility also double as a polling place 

for the Putney area.  The Chairman requested that there be more discussion so that additional 

amenities be added to possibly expand the concept of a safe room.  Mr. McCoy shared that 

this was not designed to be a safe room, but a recommendation can be made to do so.  There 

was consent for Mr. Maschke to proceed.  Commissioner Edwards would like the Recreation 

Committee to review and propose to use funding in SPLOST VII.  Commissioner Gaines 

asked if we will be operating as a Board of a whole or using committees.  Mr. McCoy shared 

with Chairman Heard that normally the Chairman directs items to committees.  The 

Chairman said that committees could be utilized more, and Commissioner Edwards voiced 

his concern regarding consistency in funding and agenda listing. 

 

Commissioner Johnson wanted an update on the incident at Robert Cross Park and shared 

that he will wait to receive it next week.  Commissioner Gaines wanted staff to provide a 

deadline on when goals [from the retreat] will be accomplished with tasks.  Mr. McCoy 

shared that he needed guidance from the Board because this request is a deviation from the 

past but will take action.  The Chairman will meet with Mr. McCoy for further discussion. A 

slide presentation of the Chairman’s first 100 days was shown.  

 

There being no further business to discuss the Commission the meeting adjourned at  

12:30 p.m. 

 
 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

10

Item 5a.



May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

1

Albany-Dougherty Youth Unit 
Summer Camp Program

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

The Albany-Dougherty Youth Unit Summer Camp Program is a 
continuation of one of the most comprehensive youth programs in the 
South Georgia area. This summer program offers diversity of both 
education and recreation that will enrich and enhance the lives of the 
children participating in the program.

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

1

2

11

Item 6a.



May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

2

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Albany-Dougherty Youth Unit Summer Camp is to 
educate and provide a safe atmosphere for the participants ages 8-14 
years of age. The Albany-Dougherty Youth Unit will be helping summer 
participants to become responsible members of their communities by 
setting goals for themselves, resisting negative peer pressure,  
understanding how gang violence will impact the quality of their lives, 
and learning how to cherish yesterday and enjoy today!!! 

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

Overview of 2022 Summer Camp

• Last year camp was held at Merry Acres Middle School 

• 125 participants (average 114 daily)

• Special thanks to:
 Dougherty County Administration/Commissioners

 Dougherty County School System

 Phoebe Network of Trust 

 Family Wellness Outreach Center of Georgia

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

3

4

12

Item 6a.



May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

3

Program Description

The Albany-Dougherty Youth Summer Program included character 
education programs that reinforced the cognitive, social, and self-
esteem-building lessons that students were taught during the school 
year. 

Deputies and Officers from the Dougherty County Sheriff’s Office, 
Albany Police Department and Dougherty County School Police were 
the facilitators and team leaders for the five-week (May 31st – July 1st) 
program.

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

Program Description(cont.)

During the Albany-Dougherty Youth Unit Summer Program, the camp 
participants were divided into four groups or teams (Blue, Green, Red, 
and Yellow).  Each team was led by two adult staff members and two 
team captains (students). The teams interacted and/or competed with 
each other during the course of the camp. Each team used their 
academic and athletic skills to gain the most points for the camp 
championship. 

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

5

6

13

Item 6a.



May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

4

Camp Sessions

Educational Training: Participants learned about the negative 
consequences of street gang activity, marijuana, bullying, and peer 
pressure. They also learned goal setting, communications skills, choices 
& consequences, and financial literacy.

These topics focused on providing life skills to participants to help them 
avoid delinquent behavior and using violence to solve problems. 

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

Camp Sessions (cont.)

Healthy Lifestyles: Registered nurses from Phoebe Putney’s “Network 
of Trust” program facilitated four one-hour sessions, covered topics on 
personal hygiene, diet, nutrition, etc.

Family Wellness Outreach Center of Georgia: This organization 
facilitated ten one-hour sessions. Sessions covered the decision making
process and how to practice it, goal setting, the importance of the 
character trait of respect, how peer pressure can make it hard to draw 
the line, and distinguishing between effective and ineffective 
communication.

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

7

8

14

Item 6a.



May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

5

Camp Sessions (cont.)

AWANA Games: This session was offered two times each week by the 
“Game Master”. Camp participants played in sporting events with a 
unique twist in the school’s gym and on the football field. All events 
were focused on team concepts. Participants used their individual skills 
and worked together as a team to achieve maximum points. 

Team Building: This session was used each day for team leaders and 
camp participants to reflect on daily activities and current events. 
Teams met individually or collectively for team building sessions. Staff 
members facilitated this block of instruction. 

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

Camp Sessions (cont.)

Field Trips: Camp participants attended several field trips for education 
and recreation. Campers visited Albany State University, Star Dust 
Skating Center, and Six Flags Over Georgia. 

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

9

10

15

Item 6a.



May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

6

Proposal

2023 End of Camp Celebration 

• Wild Adventures Trip (include admission, lunch buffet & unlimited drink cup) 

145 tickets (125 campers & 20 chaperones) at $63.00 per person

Total $9,135.00

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

ANY

May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

11

12

16

Item 6a.



      Michael McCoy 
                               County Administrator 

 

 

 

 

                                                        

 DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                                ADMINISTRATION 

        

 

   
 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 | dougherty.ga.us 

Agenda Item 

 

Date:   April 14, 2023 

 

Meeting Date:             April 24, 2023 

 

Subject/Title:  Tag and Tax Office Furniture Replacement/Renovation 

 

Presented for:  Decision 

 

Presenter:                    

 

Statement of Issue 

Dougherty County Facilities Management needs to purchase furniture for the Tag and Tax 

Department in conjunction with the interior renovation.    

 

History/Facts and Issues  

Dougherty County Facilities Management needs to purchase furniture for the Tag and Tax 

Office.  This request is in conjunction with the interior renovation being bid to increase the 

services provided to citizens of Dougherty County. The recommendation is to purchase 

furniture on the State contract.  This is a time-sensitive request due to the upcoming 

renovation.  Once ordered, the furniture will ship in approximately 8-12 weeks and needs to be 

installed during the renovation, after the flooring is installed.  

 

Recommended Action 

Recommend Dougherty County Commission accepts the quote from Advent Business Interiors 

(Leesburg, GA) for the furniture replacement and upgrade for a total expenditure of 

$36,924.76. 

 

Funding Source 

SPLOST VI-Tag and Tax Offices furniture replacement and upgrade 

 

State Contract 
Advent Business Interiors (Leesburg, Ga) $36,924.76 

17

Item 7a.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR EXECUTION OF THE CONTRACT TO ACCEPT THE 
BID TO PROVIDE FOOD SERVICES FOR THE DOUGHERTY COUNTY JAIL FROM THE 

LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE VENDOR MEETING SPECIFICATIONS, 
TRINITY SERVICES GROUP; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;  
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
 WHEREAS, Dougherty County, Georgia issued a bid invitation to provide food services for the 
Dougherty County Jail and received two bids for the said scope of work; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Dougherty County Administrator and Sheriff’s Office recommend that 
Dougherty County accept the bid to provide food services for the Dougherty County Jail from the lowest 
responsive and responsible vendor meeting specifications, Trinity Services Group out of Oldsmar, Florida, 
in the amount of $811,340.00, subject to execution by the County Administrator;  
 
 WHEREAS, funding for food services to the Dougherty County Jail was budgeted in the amount 
of $800,000.00 and will be provided from the General Fund, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia is hereby desirous of 
approving and executing the contract to accept the bid for provide food services for the Dougherty County 
Jail with Trinity Services Group attached hereto and specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by the Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I      The attached contract to accept the bid from Trinity Services Group to provide 
food services for the Dougherty County Jail is hereby approved and the County Administrator is hereby 
authorized to execute same.  The County Administrator along with any other appropriate County personnel 
is hereby authorized to execute any and all other documents necessary to full implementation of said 
contract.   
 
 SECTION II    All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  
  
  
 This the 1st day of May, 2023. 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 
 
BY: ______________________________ 

          Lorenzo L. Heard, Chairman 
ATTEST 
_______________________________ 
County Clerk 
 

 

 

18

Item 7b.



19

Item 7b.



20

Item 7b.



21

Item 7b.



22

Item 8a.



23

Item 8a.



24

Item 8a.



25

Item 8a.



A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL TO FUND TOTAL FEES AND RELATED 

EXPENSES FOR ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR PUTNEY 

PARK MULTI-GENERATIONAL FACILITY AS PROPOSED BY MASCHKE 

ASSOCIATES; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH;  

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

 WHEREAS, Maschke Associates out of Albany, Georgia, prepared a proposal to provide 

architectural and engineering services for the Putney Park multi-generational facility in the amount 

of $93,000.00; 

 

WHEREAS, having considered said proposal, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty 

County, Georgia is hereby desirous of approving funding for the proposed architectural and 

engineering services for the Putney Park multi-generational facility to be performed by Maschke 

Associates for the total amount of $93,000.00, funding for which is available in SPLOST VII. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty 

County, Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 

 

 SECTION I      Funding for architectural and engineering services for the Putney Park 

multi-generational facility as set forth in the attached proposal prepared by Maschke Associates in 

total amount of $93,000.00 is hereby approved and the County Administrator is authorized to 

execute any and all documents necessary to the full implementation of the same.   

 

 SECTION II    All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

  

This the 1st day of May, 2023. 

        

       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

 

       BY:______________________________ 

            Lorenzo L. Heard, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

County Clerk 

26

Item 8b.



27

Item 8b.



28

Item 8b.



29

Item 8b.



30

Item 8b.



31

Item 8b.



32

Item 8b.



33

Item 8b.



34

Item 8b.



35

Item 8b.



36

Item 8b.



37

Item 8b.



38

Item 8b.



39

Item 8b.



40

Item 8b.



 
A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 
A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION OF 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN MARINE CORPS LOGISTICS 
BASE AND ALBANY AND DOUGHERTY COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENTS, 

ALBANY FIRE DEPARTMENT AND DOUGHERTY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE; 
REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT 

HEREWITH;  
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia has considered 
and is hereby desirous of approving and adopting a certain Memorandum of Understanding 
between the Marine Corps Logistics Base and the Albany and Dougherty County Police 
Departments, Albany Fire Department and Dougherty County Sheriff’s Office for the purpose of 
providing Heightened Security Threat-Code Red/Blue Dart notifications, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Dougherty County Administrator and Police Chief recommend approval 
of the same;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty 
County, Georgia and its hereby resolved by authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I      The attached Memorandum of Understanding between the Marine Corps 
Logistics Base and the Albany and Dougherty County Police Departments, Albany Fire 
Department and Dougherty County Sheriff’s Office for the purpose of providing Heightened 
Security Threat-Code Red/Blue Dart notifications is hereby approved and adopted and the 
Dougherty County Chairman, Administrator, Sheriff, Police Chief and Fire Chief are hereby 
authorized to execute any and all other documents necessary to the full implementation of said 
Memorandum of Agreement. 
 
 SECTION II    All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
  
 This the 1st day of May, 2023.   
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
       BY:______________________________ 
           Lorenzo L. Heard, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
County Clerk 

41

Item 8c.



UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS 
MARINE CORPS LOGISTICS BASE 

814 RADFORD BOULEVARD SUITE 20302 

ALBANY GEORGIA 31704-0302 
 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

MARINE CORPS LOGISTICS BASE ALBANY, GEORGIA 

AND 

ALBANY AND DOUGHERTY COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENTS, 

ALBANY FIRE DEPARTMENT 

AND 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY SHERIFF 

 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), M67008-230210-U001, is 

entered into by and between The Albany and Dougherty County 

Police Departments, Albany Fire Department and Dougherty County 

Sheriff hereinafter referred to as SUPPLIER, and Marine Corps 

Logistics Base (MCLB), Albany, Georgia, hereinafter referred to 

as RECEIVER and referred to collectively as the PARTIES. 

 

1.  AUTHORITIES.  The following references provide authority and 

additional guidance relevant to the provisions of this 

understanding. 

 

    1.1.  Department of Defense Instruction (DODI) 3025.21, 

Defense Support of Civilian Law Enforcement Agencies 

 

    1.2.  DoDI 4000.19, Support Agreements 

 

    1.3.  MCLB Albany Base Order 4400.46H, Support Agreement 

Program 

 

    1.4.  MOU M67008-210405-U005 Georgia Hospital Emergency and 

Administrative Radio (HEAR) network 

 

2.  PURPOSE.  This MOU is to document the services provided by 

the SUPPLIER to the RECEIVER in cases of a Heightened Security 

Threat-Code Red/Blue Dart notification aboard MCLB Albany. 

 

3.  UNDERSTANDING OF THE PARTIES.  The Parties to this MOU agree 

as follows: 

 

 

42

Item 8c.



Subj:  HEIGHTEN SECURITY THREAT-CODE RED/BLUE DART NOTIFICATION 

 

 

2                     M67008-230210-U001 

    3.1.  The SUPPLIER will:  

 

        3.1.1. Provide the RECEIVER addition police patrols 

along the perimeters of Fleming, Johnson and Mock Roads around 

the MCLB fence line when a Heightened Security Threat-Code Red 

notification is issued. 

 

        3.1.2. Notify and or activate depending on scale of 

incident the Dougherty County Emergency Operations Center (EOC) 

and 911 call center in conjunction with RECIEVER EOC and MCLB 

Albany 5911 call center for communicating together.   

 

        3.1.3. Ensure a Heightened Security Threat-Code Red 

notification is sent to all relevant personnel advising them of 

the threat and response, along with notification to the Albany 

Mayor, County Chairman, City Manager and County Administrator. 

 

        3.1.4. Execute a mass notification of local law 

enforcement and public safety partners of the threat. 

 

    3.2.  The RECEIVER will:  

 

        3.2.1. Contact the SUPPLIER with Heightened Security 

Threat-Code Red notification. 

 

        3.2.2. Notify and or activate depending on scale of 

incident the MCLB Albany (EOC) in conjunction with the Dougherty 

County EOC and MCLB emergency dispatch call center in 

conjunction with SUPPLIER EOC and 911 call center for 

communicating together. 

 

        3.2.3. Provide briefings from Marine Corps Police 

Department and Naval Criminal Investigation Service (NCIS) to 

Albany Police Departments Criminal Intelligence Analysis Unit 

(CIAU), Georgia Bureau of Investigation (GBI) and the Federal 

Bureau of Investigations (FBI) on status of a Code Red Threat. 

 

4.  PERSONNEL.  Each PARTY is responsible for all costs of its 

personnel, including pay and benefits, support, and travel.  

Each PARTY is responsible for supervision and management of its 

personnel. 

 

 

 

43

Item 8c.



Subj:  HEIGHTEN SECURITY THREAT-CODE RED/BLUE DART NOTIFICATION 

 

 

3                     M67008-230210-U001 

5.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

    5.1.  Points of Contact (POC).  Parties are to use the 

following POC to communicate in the implementation of this MOU.  

Each PARTY may change its point of contact upon reasonable notice 

to the other PARTY. 

 

        5.1.1. For the SUPPLIER 

 

            5.1.1.1. Albany Police Department: 

                     Albany Police Chief 

                     Phone: (229) 431-2100 

 

            5.1.1.2. Dougherty County Police Department 

                     Dougherty County Police Chief 

                     Phone: (229) 430-6600 

 

            5.1.1.3. Albany Fire Department 

                     Albany Fire Chief 

                     Phone: (229) 302-1917 

 

            5.1.1.4. Dougherty County Sheriff’s Office 

                     Dougherty County Sheriff 

                     Phone: (229) 302-3600 

 

        5.1.2. For the RECIEVER 

 

            5.1.2.1. Support Agreement Specialist 

                     Business Performance Office 

                     Phone: (229)639-7494 

 

            5.1.2.2. Police Chief, Marine Corps  

                     Marine Corps Police Department 

                     Phone: (229) 639-7592 

 

    5.2.  Correspondence:  All correspondence to be sent and 

notices to be given pursuant to this MOU will be addressed, 

 

        5.2.1. if to the SUPPLIER, to 

 

            5.2.1.1. Albany Police Department 

                      201 W. Oglethorpe Blvd 

                      Albany, GA 31701 

 

44

Item 8c.



Subj:  HEIGHTEN SECURITY THREAT-CODE RED/BLUE DART NOTIFICATION 

 

 

4                     M67008-230210-U001 

            5.2.1.2. Dougherty County Police Department 

                     2106 Habersham Rd. 

                     Albany, GA 31701 

 

            5.2.1.3. Albany Fire Department 

                     320 N. Jackson Street 

                     Albany, GA 31701 

 

            5.2.1.4. Dougherty County Sheriff 

                     225 Pine Avenue 

                     Albany, GA 31701 

 

        5.2.1. and, if to the RECEIVER, to 

 

            5.2.1.1. Commanding Officer 

                     Marine Corps Logistics Base 

                     814 Radford Blvd, Suite 20302 

                     Albany, GA 31704-0302 

 

    5.3.  Review of Agreement.  This MOU will be reviewed mid-

point of its term, in its entirety. 

 

    5.4.  Modification of Agreement.  This MOU may only be 

modified by the written agreement of the PARTIES, duly signed by 

their authorized representatives. 

 

    5.5.  Disputes.  Any disputes relating to this MOU will, 

subject to any applicable law, Executive Order, Directive, or 

Instruction, be resolved by consultation between the PARTIES or 

in accordance with DoDI 4000.19. 

 

    5.6.  Termination of Agreement.  This MOU may be terminated 

by either PARTY by giving at least 90 days written notice to the 

other PARTY.  The MOU may also be terminated at any time upon 

the mutual written consent of the Parties. 

 

    5.7.  Transferability.  This Agreement is not transferable 

except with the written consent of the PARTIES. 

 

    5.8.  Entire Agreement.  It is expressly understood and 

agreed that this MOU embodies the entire Agreement between the 

PARTIES regarding the MOU’s subject matter. 

 

45

Item 8c.



Subj:  HEIGHTEN SECURITY THREAT-CODE RED/BLUE DART NOTIFICATION 

 

 

5                     M67008-230210-U001 

    5.9.  Effective Date.  This MOU takes effect beginning on 

the day after the last PARTY signs.  

 

    5.10.  Expiration Date.  This Agreement will remain in 

effect for nine years, unless otherwise modified or canceled. 

 

    5.11.  No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this MOU, 

express or implied, is intended to give to, or will be construed 

to confer upon, any person not a party any remedy or claim under 

or by reason of this MOU and this MOU will be for the sole and 

exclusive benefit of the PARTIES. 

 

6.  FINANCIAL DETAILS.  This MOU does not provide for 

reimbursement between the PARTIES.   

 

7.  APPROVAL: 

 

FOR MARINE CORPS LOGISTICS BASE ALBANY 

 

 

 

____________________________     _____________________________ 

SEAN L. LAMONZS         Date     M. J. FITZGERALD         Date 

Police Chief                     Colonel, Commanding Officer 

 

  

46

Item 8c.



Subj:  HEIGHTEN SECURITY THREAT-CODE RED/BLUE DART NOTIFICATION 

 

 

6                     M67008-230210-U001 

FOR THE CITY OF ALBANY; DOUGHERTY COUNTY; ALBANY POLICE 

DEPARTMENT; DOUGHERTY COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT; DOUGHERTY COUNTY 

SHERIFF AND ALBANY FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

 

____________________________       _____________________________ 

BO DOROUGH              Date       LORENZO HEARD            Date 

Mayor, City of Albany              Chairman, Dougherty County 

                                   Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

____________________________        ____________________________ 

STEVEN CARTER           Date        MICHAEL McCOY           Date 

City Manager                        County Administrator 

City of Albany                      Dougherty County 

 

 

 

____________________________       _____________________________ 

MICHAEL PERSLEY         Date       KENNETH JOHNSON         Date 

Police Chief                       Police Chief 

Albany Police Department           Dougherty County Police 

                                   Department 

 

 

 

____________________________       _____________________________ 

CEDRIC SCOTT             Date      KEVIN SPROUL            Date 

Chief, Albany Fire Department      Dougherty County Sheriff 

47

Item 8c.


	Top
	Item 5a.	Minutes
	2023.04.03 Minutes Regular
	2023.04.10 Minutes Work

	Item 6a.	Delegation a_Sheriffs Office
	2023.05.01_Delegation a_Youth program

	Item 7a.	Purchase a_Tax Furniture
	Purchase a_Furniture

	Item 7b.	Purchase b_Food Service
	Purchases b_Resolution Food Services
	Purchase b_Food Services

	Item 8a.	Other a_ Putney Park
	Other a_ Maintenance and Operations (b)
	Other a_Maintenance and Operations Budget

	Item 8b.	Other b_Architectural Cost
	Resolution Approving Putney Park Multi-Generational Facility
	Other b_DoCo Putney Park Proposal

	Item 8c.	Other c_ MOU (DCP)
	Other d_Resolution Threat Response
	APD_DOCO Threat Response

	Bottom

